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P R O C E E D I N G S 


CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: With the hour having passed 

we'll get started this morning. Welcome everybody. I 

appreciate everyone's being here this morning. I'm proud 

to be alive. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: When you reach that age, 

it just becomes a real blessing. 

DIRECTOR McNARY: I was going to say the same 

thing. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Good morning, reporter. 

COURT REPORTER: Good morning. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: How are you? 

COURT REPORTER: Fine. How are you? 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Good. Thank you. 

Okay. We'll call this meeting to order. 

Ms. Angie, would you call the roll, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Here. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Present. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Present. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Hatches. 

(No answer.) 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 
4 
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COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Present. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: With everyone being 

present, we will start with the consideration of the 

minutes from the May 26 meeting. Chair would accept the 

motion to adopt the minutes from that meeting. 

Mr. Jones, would you like to do that? 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Move for adoption of the 

May 26, 2010, minutes. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: I'll second it since I was 

here. 

Call roll, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: By your vote you've adopted the 

minutes of the May 26, 2010, meeting. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Mr. McNary? 

DIRECTOR McNARY: Mr. Chairman and 

Commissioners, Item III on the agenda is consideration of 

hearing officer recommendations, and attorney Don Wolff 
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will address those issues. He's here, a rare personal 

appearance. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Wasn't he the one we kept 

hearing? The phone was from Florida or someplace, you 

know, all during the winter months? 

COMMISSIONER JONES: It was your back swing. 

MR. McNARY: He delayed a golf game. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Come forward, sir, please. 

Nice to have you back in the state of Missouri. 

MR. WOLFF: Good morning, members of the 

Commission. This is my final hearing and the final time 

you'll have to put up with phone calls from Florida, but 

eat your heart out. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. Thank you, sir. 

MR. WOLFF: You, too, will play golf there when 

you retire. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Yeah. 

MR. WOLFF: The first matter on the agenda is 

Mathew Horton, a somewhat complicated case. He was 

alleged to have parlayed winning toke or tip bets instead 

of collecting the winning bets and immediately dropping 

them into the tip box as he was required to do by the 

regulations. 

The case is complicated in some way by the facts 

in which it was not he who was the one who was observed 
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parlaying the tip bets, but rather the customer who was 

doing it, and he allowed it to happen. 

There's no controversy or dispute about the 

facts in that he allowed it to happen and he didn't take 

any action to prevent it from happening. Both he and 

another dealer of long experience both testified before 

me that the custom and practice in those situations was 

to let the wrongful parlaying of the bet ride rather than 

to stop the play, similar to when a customer improperly 

apprehends or takes the tip bet which belongs in the tip 

box instead of in his pocket, and they were taught not to 

stop the play but to let the play continue. That was his 

testimony and that of another witness. 

There was no conflict about the custom and 

practice except from an officer who had observed a couple 

of training sessions but never gave the training, and 

there was no written policy in either regard, so in my 

liberal leanings I recommend to you that the five-day 

suspension that was initially recommended be cut because 

I think the policy could and should be clearer about what 

to do when a customer is the one that parlayed the bet as 

opposed to the dealer. 

And also while recommending that the policy be 

made clearer on what to do in that instance, I also 

recommend that the policy be made clearer as to what to 
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do when the customer takes and appropriates wrongfully 

the tip bet into his winnings. 

Somewhat complicated, so I don't know whether 

you have any questions of me or not, but I have 

recommended less than the five-day suspension that was 

initially recommended by staff. 

This was Mr. Horton's first disciplinary action, 

and I tended to agree with him that given the unclarity 

of the policies here that a two-day suspension was, in 

this instance, more appropriate than five days. That's 

my recommendation, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you, Don. 

Since this all occurred some time ago, what 

action has been taken so that that is clearer when it's a 

customer making the act? I mean, have we done anything 

about that since then? Help me out. Maybe we have and 

I've forgotten it. 

MR. WOLFF: It's not my area, Senator, but I did 

recommend to the staff that the policy be made clearer in 

writing as opposed to relying upon what testimony is 

going to be as to what the custom and the training is. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Chris, do you want to 

handle that --

MR. HINCKLEY: Sure. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: -- Chris Hinckley, legal 
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counsel? 

MR. HINCKLEY: As a result of a hearing we did 

review -- well, as a result of the request for hearing 

and at the hearing we did review the minimum internal 

controls and the internal controls of the Commission and 

the licensee with regard to how the game is conducted, 

but the specifics about what Mr. Wolff is talking about 

are in the conduct of the game, so we would have to take 

some time to sit down with the licensee and figure out 

whether or not this needs to be changed. 

There is something -- there is some disagreement 

as to whether or not it was clear, but I think it's worth 

addressing. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: So Mr. Hinckley, are you 

saying that it may be a policy for the licensee that 

needs to be changed or their procedures in addition to 

our internal controls? 

MR. HINCKLEY: Can I just have Clarence speak or 

one of the auditors with regard to the minimum internal 

controls, internal controls, and then the conduct of the 

game like, let's say, in this case poker. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Cheryl. 

MR. HINCKLEY: Cheryl? Okay. 

MS. ALONZO: Cheryl Alonzo, Director of 
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Compliance Audit --

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Cheryl, identify yourself. 

Come up, please so we pick you up on tape, okay? 

MS. ALONZO: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you. 

MS. ALONZO: Cheryl Alonzo, Director of 

Compliance Audit. 

I think our understanding of the rule is that it 

doesn't address parlaying because parlaying is just not 

allowed. The bet occurs, and if it's a winner, it's 

supposed to be immediately deposited, you know, or 

collected. 

If it's a losing wager, there's no provision set 

in there for parlaying, which means to let it ride: Now 

let's see if we can win more off that bet. We didn't --

you know, so that's how we read the rule today, so 

whether or not that needs to be clarified is we just 

didn't think it was allowed. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: And because of their 

customs and the clarity of the rule, it's just been --

you know, they have allowed the customer to just continue 

doing the parlaying or not doing it. 

MS. ALONZO: Yeah. I don't know what -- I think 

that was some of his testimony was that he believed that 

was customary, but it was kind of a surprise to us when 

10 
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we read that because we weren't aware that that was --

that people were parlaying bets or tips, because tips are 

supposed to be immediately deposited. 

MR. WOLFF: It's clear that the policy prohibits 

the parlaying of tip bets. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Right. 

MR. WOLFF: There's no disagreement. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Right. 

MR. WOLFF: But when you have the customer --

and in this case there was the video, as you probably 

know -- that shows all of this, and it verified what the 

employee was testifying to, and that is that it was in 

seven out of the eleven, or whatever instances it was, 

the customer who moved his bet, which was clearly a tip 

bet that had been won by the dealer and should've been 

collected. 

It was a customer whose hands move that tip bet 

or control that tip bet, and it wasn't something that the 

dealer was himself doing, so the conflict is, what does 

the dealer do when the customer does that? Does he say, 

Sir, stop. You can't do that. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Right. 

MR. WOLFF: That's my bet and I have to put that 

in here, and I'm required to do that. 

Probably that's what it -- what he should do, 

11 
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but there's no policy that tells him that --

COMMISSIONER JONES: Right. 

MR. WOLFF: -- and his testimony and the other 

dealer's testimony was -- or the opposite is he stops all 

play and calls his supervisor and brings a supervisor 

over who tells the customer, but whatever it is, policy 

that is going to be set ought to be clear. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Yeah. Absolutely. 

MR. WOLFF: And they testified custom and 

training was different and that they shouldn't stop the 

play. 

I still agree that he should not have allowed it 

to happen, and I still agree he should be disciplined to 

some degree, but I thought five days was too harsh. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. So Don, at this 

point, the Commission doesn't know whether or not this 

practice is still going on without an answer? I mean, is 

that where we are? 

MR. WOLFF: Senator, it's still going on until 

the policy is made clearer in writing for the training of 

dealers, in my opinion, and so my suggestion here in this 

report is that that policy in writing be changed to not 

only state tip bets -- parlaying tip bets is prohibited, 

but here's what you do when the customer attempts to do 

it, and here's also what you do if the customer 

12 
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apprehends the winning tip bet and takes it and puts it 

in his own pocket or his own pile. There should be a 

rule in writing that tells the dealer what to do --

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. 

MR. WOLFF: -- in my opinion. 

MR. HINCKLEY: Let me just make a point. The 

violation is, you know, not putting the tip directly into 

the tip, and that's our policy. 

How they conduct the game cannot contradict our 

policies. I don't think there was a direct conflict 

here. I don't think their policies said don't put the 

tip in there. It was just the custom of the -- this 

dealer --

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Yeah. 

MR. HINCKLEY: -- contradicted the policy and --

or lead to him not following Commission internal 

controls, and that's the violation. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. But Chris, I'm a 

little conflicted here. I don't have a problem with 

Don's report. I think it's appropriate, and I would even 

support your from five days down to two days. I -- I 

agree with what you've said, sir, and I think you've 

spelled that out very clear. 

What I'm trying to get to is: Do we need to 

take some action, staff needs to take it, Commission 

13 
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needs to take it, someone needs to take it so it clears 

up the question? 

MR. McNARY: Cheryl, does there need to be a 

change in internal control? 

MS. ALONZO: I think that it's clear. The bet 

ends when you deposit, so maybe the property needs to 

look and say, you know, is this something that's going on 

that we need to retrain people that at the close of that 

bet, but I think the regulation itself is sufficient. 

That's just my personal opinion. 

MR. McNARY: Again, in the interest of moving 

on, the staff -- on my way out I'm directing the staff to 

look into this and come up --

MS. ALONZO: Okay. 

MR. McNARY: -- with a change in the policy. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Yeah, and I think that's 

appropriate. And Cheryl, if we're going to -- if we're 

going to -- staff, audit staff, is going to continue to 

accept the fact that it is this way, then what would be 

wrong with explaining get the memo out or something --

MS. ALONZO: Sure. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: -- because question has 

come up here to all the casinos, managers of all the 

casinos, saying this is the policy, okay --

MS. ALONZO: I agree. 
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CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: -- from the audit staff. I 

mean, if we're going to do it that way, why not do it 

that way, you know? Okay. 

MS. ALONZO: Okay. Okay. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: I mean just so that we 

don't have to have this come up again. 

MS. ALONZO: Okay. I'll get something out to 

all the compliance offices and they can share it with 

staff. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Is that okay, Gene? 

MR. McNARY: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: I mean, are we okay with 

that? 

MS. ALONZO: Can't hurt. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: My comment is: I think it 

would be very clear, normally, that the customer does not 

let his bet ride for eleven different times. It's either 

a tip or a toke at the end of the play of one set or it's 

his money, but to let it ride eleven times is pretty 

clear to me that he should've deposited the money 

immediately after it was given as a tip. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Well, as a player on 

occasion, I'd just as soon they give it back to me, but 

then that's not appropriate either. Just kidding. 
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MR. MERRITT: With that said, I will move for 

acceptance of Resolution No. 10-078. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you, Jack. We have a 

motion and a second. Any further discussion after all 

this discussion? 

Call roll, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Matthewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: I approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 

MS FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 

COMMISSIONER MERITT: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: By your vote you've adopted 

Resolution No. 10-078. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you, sir. 

MR. WOLFF: Casey Forrester is the next matter 

on the docket, and Casey Forrester failed to disclose an 

arrest for stealing over $500, a felony, on May 15, 2008, 

just a little more than a year prior to filling out the 

form. 

She did not appear at the hearing, and the 

recommendation that her temporary license be revoked or 

whatever for failure to disclose the arrest is one I 
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agree with and recommend to the Commission. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any questions, Don, on this 

one? 

Chair will you accept the motion to accept. 

Is she here? I'm sorry. I moved along only 

because if she didn't show up to the hearing, I guessed 

she wouldn't be here. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: I move for approval of 

10-068. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Second. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any further discussion? 

Call the roll, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: By your vote you've adopted 

Resolution No. 10-068. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Don. 

MR. WOLFF: Members of the Commission, Lloyd 

Oscar Wiley, IV, presents some interesting questions that 

17 
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I would like for you to at least consider. 

In this case he disclosed some prior arrests, 

and in his form wrote "that's all I can remember" or "all 

that I remember." In fact, he didn't remember a number 

of arrests that occurred 20 years ago, and 15 years ago, 

and maybe up to 10 years ago. 

I reluctantly go along with the recommendation 

that he lose his license because he failed to disclose 

arrests, but I do it reluctantly because I suggest to you 

that I can't, in my humble opinion, find a real 

justification for terminating a person's license because 

they fail to disclose an arrest, particularly one that's 

that long ago, particularly one in which they're not 

lying by saying there were none but saying "that's all I 

can remember." That may be a lie by omission, but it's a 

little different than saying "I had none." 

I just think a policy that causes a person to 

lose their job because they had an arrest that never 

resulted in a charge, never resulted in a plea of guilty 

or any other disposition is something that, in my 

opinion, is a policy you-all ought to consider. 

You are spending -- in the short time I have 

here with you as your hearings officer, and I thank you 

for that opportunity -- you're spending more time dealing 

with a number of cases that deal with the failure to 
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disclose an arrest for which there was never any action. 

Seems to me we're punishing a person twice for 

something they didn't commit. First of all, they got 

arrested, and we have to assume by the law that we're 

under that they weren't guilty. They weren't charged. 

They weren't prosecuted. The cases were just dropped 

after an arrest, so we punish him in that regard and now 

we punish him because we take their license away because 

they failed to disclose such an incident which didn't 

result in anything more. 

I seriously question the wisdom, if not the 

right to do that. I had this debate with general 

counsel -- not general counsel, but with Mr. Hinckley, 

with whom I deal, a number of times, and it's clear to me 

the law allows an exception in this instance because this 

is a governmental agency, but if this were Boeing or 

Monsanto or McDonnell or your place of business or my law 

office, we couldn't deny a person a job or even require 

him to fill out an application that says whether or not 

he's ever been arrested. 

In fact, as a lawyer for 48 years, I always 

advise my clients to not answer the question or to answer 

you don't have any right to ask that question or just to 

answer it "no convictions," which clearly people have a 

right to ask for, but not for arrests, except in a 
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governmental agency like the Army. 

Missouri Gaming Commission isn't the Army, and I 

question whether an arrest for peace disturbance or some 

charge which didn't result in anything else other than 

the arrest and the matter was totally dropped is a policy 

that ought to be adhered to by this commission. 

You knew when you brought in a liberal Democrat 

you knew that you were going to hear something like this 

along the line. Since this is my parting shot, I'm 

giving it to you. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Hey, Don, God love you. 

MR. WOLFF: Only God loves me, your Honor. 

MR. McNARY: That he loses his license; is that 

correct? 

MR. WOLFF: Correct, for failure to disclose an 

arrest. The next case is a failure to disclose a 

conviction. That's totally different. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Mr. Chairman, if I may 

address Mr. Wolff's statements --

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Yeah. We'll see. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: I hope that those I 

arrested during my tenure had such an impression that 

they didn't forget it. I think when you've been 

fingerprinted and you're hooked up, then you're going to 

remember that unless it's convenient not to, so I would 
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totally disagree with about everything you said on that. 

MR. WOLFF: Well, God love you. You're a police 

officer, and I respect -- a former police officer and I 

honor you. I'm a former defense counsel. 

MR. McNARY: But he was a prosecutor before he 

changed his stripes. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Yeah. 

MR. HINCKLEY: Mr. Chairman, I just want to 

point out that it's not a complete denial of their 

license. They get to reapply on denials one year later, 

and if you weigh the possibility of someone that's not 

disclosing arrests and the fact that they might be 

dishonest in an industry that cannot have dishonest 

people, I think a denial for one year is a nice balance 

to the risk it might reveal. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Well, be that what it may, 

I think we have question before us and we need to take it 

out. 

MR. WOLFF: Just a parting comment for your 

consideration, I recommend -- I support the 

recommendation to deny the license based on the failure 

to disclose a number of arrests that occurred a number of 

years ago. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you, Don. 

Any further -- is this person here? 
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(No answer.) 


CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: No? Okay. 


COMMISSIONER MERRITT: He forgot to come. 


CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Yeah. 


MR. WOLFF: I made it pretty clear to him that 


there wasn't going to be much leeway. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Mr. Chairman, just some 

housekeeping issues on this Resolution No. 10-069. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: On the conclusion of the 

law, it has in there the MGC may deny Wilcox 

application. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Oh. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Can we change that to --

MS. FRANKS: What page number? 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: It's the finding of fact 

and the conclusion of law. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Conclusion of law, the 

first. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: The second page or 

something of this case. Lloyd Oscar Wiley, IV, somehow 

we have a typo there. Good point, Commissioner. 

MR. McNARY: We'll take care of that. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you. 
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Okay. Chair would accept the motion to accept 

the recommendation --

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: So moved. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: -- with comments. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Second. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. Any further 

discussion? Call the roll, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: By your vote you've adopted 

Resolution No. 10-069. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Don, please. 

MR. WOLFF: The final case on your docket this 

morning is Christopher Jones, who, on his application 

failed to disclose that he pled guilty to felony theft on 

February 6, 1996, and failure to disclose a plea of 

guilty is grounds for denial of a license, and I agree 

with Commissioner Merritt that he should have remembered, 

so I support the recommendation that he be denied his 
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license, Christopher Jones. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Is Mr. Jones here? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. Chair would accept a 

motion on Christopher Jones. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Move for adoption of 

10-070. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Second. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any further discussion? 

Call the roll, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: By your vote you've adopted 

Resolution No. 10-070. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Don, thank you. 

MR. WOLFF: Senator, thank you, members of the 

Commission, Gene. And Chris, it was a pleasure to be 

associated with the Missouri Gaming Commission. Most of 

you know I'm in my retirement. I didn't need this job, 
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and it certainly wasn't for the meager money that is 

paid --

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Yeah, we have that same 

problem. 

MR. WOLFF: But you have all your senatorial 

years --

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: But do you get more than a 

hundred dollars a month is what I want to know? If you 

do, shame on you. 

MR. WOLFF: In any case, it was a pleasure to 

work with you. Thank you all. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you, Don. Thank you 

for your service, sir. Go back to Florida and play some 

golf. 

MR. WOLFF: Thank you. I will. 

MR. McNARY: Chairman, Item IV of the agenda 

concerns A and B licensees, Harrah's Entertainment and 

distinguished Harrah's executive, John Payne, is here. I 

don't -- you guys -- we also have GMs Tom Cook, Michael 

St. Pierre. You're on. We look forward to your 

presentation for relicensure. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Are you guys going to do 

these one at a time or altogether or both? I mean, how 

do you want to do it? Do you want to do --

MR. McNARY: Mr. Payne is the top dog. 
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CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: That's why I'm asking. 

MR. PAYNE: We're going to -- I think we're 

going to combine them together. We're going to do a 

quick overview of our responsible gaming, and I'm going 

to turn it over to each general manager to do -- if that 

works for you. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Is that okay with the 

commissioners? 

MR. PAYNE: Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, current 

executive director, new executive director, staff, it's 

good to be here. My name is John Payne. I'm the 

president of the Central Division for Harrah's 

Entertainment. I am responsible for all our casinos in 

the middle part of the country and obviously the two 

casinos here in Missouri that we're going to talk to you 

about today. 

I did want to take a chance to introduce Michael 

St. Pierre, who's our general manager at St. Louis --

he'll be speaking today -- and Tom Cook is our general 

manager at North Kansas City. 

We also have Tim Lambert, who's our attorney, 

that I know works with all the staff and does a fabulous 

job, and Marcus Glover is also here. He's our assistant 

general manager at St. Louis. 

I'm going to start today as we get to the 
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presentation to give you an overview of our responsible 

gaming programs. I know you've seen this every time 

we've been up here for renewal of our license, so I won't 

take a long time to do it. I'm going to allow my 

colleagues to click (indicated). 

We did have a short video of a commercial that I 

believe is running or -- I'm not sure the music's going 

to work, so why don't we click through that real quick. 

That's okay. 

So a little bit about our responsible gaming 

program: Again, I'm going to be brief and turn it over 

and get to the properties, but I think you know we've 

been leading in this area for many of the gaming 

companies, and we have a exceptional culture of 

responsible gaming -- a company-wide responsible gaming 

program that I believe you've been aware of. And one 

thing, the responsible gaming education week every 

August, we do that as well. 

We have ambassadors that we spend a lot of time 

training on the floor -- point this out. It's obviously 

a big part of our website, if you go to it, and we 

obviously have strong self-restriction and self-exclusion 

programs that we're adamant about. 

Over the years we've tried to improve our 

communication at our properties, and here are two 
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examples of ways that we communicate along the way. We 

also are big in our idea of insuring that underage 

gamblers do not get into our facilities. As you all are 

well aware, this is an issue at our facilities, not only 

in Missouri but in many of my properties throughout the 

middle part of the country, and we work hard with many of 

these programs. 

I think one of the new ones that's on there is 

this bounty concept that Tom and Michael can talk to you 

about, but really rewarding employees that stop underage 

gamblers from getting into the facility, I think, is a 

unique idea, and one that I have stolen from the Missouri 

properties and implemented at my other properties as 

well, and it's been quite successful along the way. 

I think the other -- I'll go to the last 

slide. As you can see, the communication that we have --

but I think the other responsible gaming side that we've 

been concentrating on in Missouri in particular is the 

enforcement of alcohol and insuring that -- identifying 

intoxicated patrons that we don't allow them to game and 

we escort them out of our facilities. 

We've worked very hard under the leadership of 

both Tom and Michael to improve this, and I think they've 

been leading the way on this for not only my division but 

I believe the company, and they'll talk a little bit 

28 



  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

           1  

           2  

           3  

           4  

           5  

           6  

           7  

           8  

           9  

          10  

          11  

          12  

          13  

          14  

          15  

          16  

          17  

          18  

          19  

          20  

          21  

          22  

          23  

          24  

          25  

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

later about the things that they've done. 

Now, we can do a better job. I think the 

message on this one is we're just getting to understand 

this better. We're training better, we're getting more 

people involved, but this is an area that I will tell you 

as the president we can do a better job. We've done a 

good job, but we're going to improve over the years. 

I'm going to turn it over so we can get into the 

meat of the presentation about Kansas City and 

St. Louis. I'm going to turn it over to Tom Cook, who's 

been our general manager, but before I do that, while I 

have the stage I do want to -- I rarely get to do this 

publicly -- I do want to compliment the two general 

managers that run our facilities in Missouri. 

Tom is going to stand up. He's our longest 

running general manager we have in our company. Tom's 

going on his sixth year of running North Kansas City. 

That is hard to stay and be successful year after year 

after year after year. Tom is raising his family in 

Kansas City and loves this area and will continue to do a 

good job. 

Michael St. Pierre, as well, has been with our 

company 18 years. He's run five different properties. 

He loves running St. Louis. He has a house down on the 

Lake that we just -- I happened to see just yesterday, 
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and he's proud to be here and continue to run our 

property. 

They're both two of our senior executives within 

our organization and are very proud to be part of this 

state and run these properties. 

I'm not letting that go to their heads. I don't 

get to compliment them too often, but they're going to 

come up and talk to you a little bit about their 

properties. I appreciate your time today. 

MR. COOK: Good morning, Mr. Chair, 

commissioners, executive director, incoming executive 

director, and staff. I'd also like to recommend, too, in 

a minute you'll here from representatives from North 

Kansas City. We have Mayor Biggerstaff and Police Chief 

Ladd with us today, so I'm pleased to have them come up 

and speak on behalf of North Kansas City and the 

partnership that we've had. 

Briefly, this is, you know, a format that we 

followed a couple years now, so we should be able to go 

through this. In general, the Missouri properties have 

had a good year, thanks in large part to the loss-limit 

repeal. 

I don't think that we've seen the effects of 

other properties within the -- within our company, 

generally having almost flat revenues year on year, but 
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we've had -- we've contributed quite a bit, almost 

$4 million in each of the last two years to the 

North Kansas City agreement. 

Our charitable contributions as written into the 

agreement we've adhered to nicely. In fact, that's one 

of the areas that I put a big compliment out to North 

Kansas City. We essentially hand that over to them and 

let them distribute the monies in the way in which they 

prefer, and they do a really, really nice job of 

allocating those monies, not just within North Kansas 

City but to broader areas as well, and that way they've 

become a very fine citizen for the greater Kansas City 

area. 

As I just mentioned, our revenue's at -- over 

the two years at $394 million about, pretty close to what 

was planned, and I'm not sure that there's a company out 

there that wouldn't love to have revenues anywhere close 

to what they had planned when you think about the last 

two years that we've been through, so real good story 

there. 

Capital, not as much as it's been in prior years 

for the reasons I just mentioned, but nonetheless we were 

able to do some nice additions, I believe. We had the 

commissioners to North Kansas City not too long ago where 

we showed the poker room that we had remodelled. 
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We've also actually spent some money in what we 

call our back of our house with our human resources 

area. We've upgraded our digital surveillance system, 

which is really state of the art for Harrah's 

Entertainment, much less within the industry. 

And then we've had a little investment in the 

general manager's club, which I believe some of the 

commissioners also were able to see when they were here. 

This is just some pictures that we have of our 

poker room. This is our HR room where we do a lot of our 

training, our general manager's club, which is basically 

a VIP room for our customers, and so a good year for some 

capital investment. We're very proud of our property and 

we think it stacks up favorably to some of the other 

casinos both in the area as well as within the company, 

so North Kansas City has been treated very well. Thank 

you, John, for giving us some money here and there. 

Employment has been -- you know, it's been a 

good story again too. Over the past two years we've 

probably dropped about 100 full-time folks as we continue 

to find ways to be more efficient and respond to a very, 

very difficult economic time, but nonetheless we've got 

payroll of over $41 million, and you can see the 

comparisons in hourly and salary. 

This is a graph that hasn't changed a whole lot 
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over the course of the years, so roughly half male and 

female and a very significant portion of our employment 

comes from the state of Missouri. 

On equal opportunity, the slide on the right 

depicts the greater Kansas City demographics with the big 

blue being the Caucasian, and then on the left you can 

see our Harrah's staffing mix, and it's -- it's nice to 

see that in almost every category from the minority 

perspective it's greater than the Kansas City area as a 

whole. 

One of the things that I'm particularly proud of 

personally and professionally together with my colleagues 

at North Kansas City is the fact that the Kansas City 

Business Journal does a survey each year that recognizes 

the best place to work, and there's among large 

companies, medium companies and small companies (sic). 

We don't do any advertisement. We don't give 

these folks any money. We just go through the process of 

doing surveys amongst our employees, and it's the surveys 

that are tabulated and all sorts of algorithms are done, 

but we've won the best place to work in Kansas City now 

for three years running, and probably when I retire, this 

will be one of the things I'm most proud of. 

Our culture there has been a big part of our 

success both financially as well as the employee 

33 



  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

           1  

           2  

           3  

           4  

           5  

           6  

           7  

           8  

           9  

          10  

          11  

          12  

          13  

          14  

          15  

          16  

          17  

          18  

          19  

          20  

          21  

          22  

          23  

          24  

          25  

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

 

          

environment and the engagement we have with our 

employees, so a real nice thing. 

In addition, we do something across our company 

called our employee opinion survey, which allows 

management the opportunity to learn from our employees in 

a confidential way about what they like and don't like 

about our property or our management or our policies or 

anything that they might have, and for the second year in 

a row now North Kansas City has been the number two 

ranked property across the country with Harrah's Casinos 

so, again, something that we're all very proud of. 

This is our current depiction of my direct 

reports, although we are in the process of taking our 

finance guy and moving him over to Tunica. He's done an 

exceptional job for us and he's needed in Tunica, but 

luckily we'll have a promotion from within and that 

picture will stay the same more or less. 

There's been some discussion about minority 

spending, and I know that there's been an audit. If we 

think about it with regard to the way in which we've 

always measured it over the last couple years, we've 

maintained about the same level of expenditure levels 

albeit with minority-owned businesses or women-owned 

businesses. 

And through this process recently there's been 

34 



  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

           1  

           2  

           3  

           4  

           5  

           6  

           7  

           8  

           9  

          10  

          11  

          12  

          13  

          14  

          15  

          16  

          17  

          18  

          19  

          20  

          21  

          22  

          23  

          24  

          25  

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

good dialogue on the way forward and ways in which we can 

improve both the measurement of our minority spend as 

well as the efforts in which to continue to find ways to 

find more minority- and women-owned businesses. 

In addition to the charitable contributions that 

we do both with North Kansas City and on our own, other 

areas in which we've been a good community partner 

include donations we've made for area sponsorships and 

businesses and organizations through our partnerships. 

Another area, we have an employee group called 

Harrah's Employees Reaching Out, Afternoon Hero, and 

we've donated, as you can see, 6400 hours and then almost 

8,000 hours, which comes close to leading the company for 

community service hours, and we're not the biggest casino 

within Harrah's Entertainment, but we sure have a group 

of dedicated employees that give back to the community. 

The following slides now just depict a lot of 

the different communities in which we operate, some 

pictures of things that we've done, Rose Brooks, we do 

Meals on Wheels where we own a regular route. This is 

Habitat for Humanity, a particularly fun one in that it 

allows us to do something nice for the community while at 

the same time allowing our team members to get to know 

each other a little bit better and really develop 

friendships and bonds that translate well back into the 
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business environment. 

There's a few more slides there. On Green, I 

just -- slow on that one. Just to note that our company 

has recently really embraced this idea of Green both 

because it's the right thing to do as well as the fact 

that I think I particularly have to acknowledge that I 

think a lot of the younger employees that we have are 

really committed to this, and in a way we've just 

embraced them in their efforts and allowed them to help 

us find ways in which we can participate in Green 

projects throughout the year, and we have a commitment 

somewhat similar to our Code of Commitment and 

Responsible Gaming. We have since -- in 2008 the company 

has adopted a code of commitment to finding ways to go 

Green more often. And that's what, I think, I just said 

on that one. 

And that was fast and furious. You know, I 

don't know at this time whether or not we'll hear from 

Michael or from the investigation on North Kansas City. 

What's your preference? 

MR. McNary: Let's take Michael first and then 

we can have the investigative --

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. 

MR. ST. PIERRE: Good morning. 

THE COMMISSION: Good morning. 
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MR. ST. PIERRE: Michael St. Pierre. I stood 

before you just a year ago, so we're off our cycle of 

every other year renewal, so I have an update on the 

presentation that we gave you last year. 

Similar to Tom's story, we were very close to 

our planned revenues, and while we would always like to 

achieve these planned revenues and mission numbers, we 

were not dissatisfied with this considering the economic 

environment we were in. 

Capital investment: Similar story, although 

we've had the benefit of some additional investments. 

want to show you some pictures of our Asian gaming space, 

which is a significant investment to appeal to a specific 

demographic. Total Rewards Center moved inside the 

casino with the elimination of requirement to have a 

Total Rewards card to get in. New turnstile systems. 

Employment: Very similar story to Kansas City. 

We have a slight reduced year-over-year salary and wages, 

although benefit costs continue to go up for us. The 

demographics: This is an identical slide to the one that 

we showed you last year. The composition of our 

employees has not changed and, again, we are 

overrepresented in African-Americans within the greater 

St. Louis County environment. 

Utilization, minority suppliers: This is an 
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area that we've made some substantial progress in, and I 

want to recognize John Nathan for the work that he's done 

because I think that there are some very interesting 

success stories that have come from the result of his 

efforts. 

I've highlighted a couple of boxes here where we 

have our minority- and women-owned business report, 

consolidated vendor report that John put together. He 

compiled the list of all the organizations, all the 

casinos in the state identifying minority- and 

women-owned businesses, shared that within the industry 

and gave us an opportunity -- and gave those vendors an 

opportunity to engage the casinoss about increasing their 

spend. 

So in addition to the things like doing minority 

business development group meetings, we hosted a session 

with an MGA in St. Louis, but we're pleased with some of 

the results. Let me show you one of our success 

stories -- or two, actually. 

Sungjun International, we've partnered with them 

on the menu for our new Asian gaming space, and 

consequently our spend with them has increased 

dramatically. 

But I'm really pleased with the unlimited water 

story. This is a local minority business-owned supplier 
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of water, and in our company we're -- we have national 

distribution, and through the power of scale we have many 

national purchasing contracts, so we get things at a very 

deeply discounted rate. 

Unlimited Water clearly was not on our national 

contract, but they came to us, and this was in a business 

that was identified through John Nathan's work. They 

came to us and we said, Is there a way we can do business 

with you? And, in fact, they offered a better product at 

lower price than what we had in our national contract, so 

in a big company like ours, we had to go and get a --

request an exception to our national purchasing 

contract. We achieved that and we started buying water 

from Unlimited Water, but we didn't stop there. 

We have now worked with them -- if they have a 

better value for Harrah's St. Louis, then clearly they 

have an opportunity to have a better value for other 

Harrah's properties, so we are working with them on 

expanding their distribution network to include more 

Harrah's properties. 

Currently all those properties are outside of 

their distribution range today, but that's something that 

we're working on and I think it's a great story and, 

again, they came from the work of John Nathan. 

The composition of our spend is very similar 
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year over year. Our overall spend in 2009 was 

substantially less than it was in years previous, but in 

terms of our spending it's been very similar. That just 

shows a quarterly breakdown. 

Community partnership: A very similar story to 

Kansas City. We're pleased with our investments in the 

community, the monies that we spend, the time that we 

spend with our Hero Committee. 

Here are some examples. This is the food 

outreach we gave them, the truck through the Harrah's 

foundation, and our employees love to participate in 

community-involved activities. 

We also have the Going Green in progress that 

really kicked into high gear this year recycling over 

292 tons of material so, you know, we think we're making 

a difference one day at a time with regard to our Green 

folks. 

So that's our story from Harrah's St. Louis. We 

believe we've benefited Missouri since 1997. We've paid 

over $870 million in gaming tax and admissions tax, and 

our payroll has been $670 million in that time, so not an 

insignificant contributor to the economy of Missouri. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you. 

MR. McNARY: We want to hear from a couple of 

distinguished mayors. Did you bring your mayors with 

40 



  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

           1  

           2  

           3  

           4  

           5  

           6  

           7  

           8  

           9  

          10  

          11  

          12  

          13  

          14  

          15  

          16  

          17  

          18  

          19  

          20  

          21  

          22  

          23  

          24  

          25  

 

          

 

 

 

          

 

          

 

          

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

you? 

MR. ST. PIERRE: We did. Since I'm up, if I can 

introduce the Honorable Mike Moeller, mayor of Maryland 

Heights to come join me and speak on behalf of the City 

and of Harrah's St. Louis. 

MR. McNARY: You can turn the light back on so 

we can see the mayor. 

MR. MOELLER: I need to put a hat on so I don't 

blind you from the glare. 

Good morning. I'm Mike Moeller, mayor of the 

City of Maryland Heights. I want to thank you for this 

opportunity to speak in support of Harrah's relicensing 

of its Maryland Heights' casinos. 

Since I was invited to attend this meeting, I 

have given some thought to the recent history of Maryland 

Heights. We have seen a lot of changes, but without any 

question, the introduction of casinos gambling ranks as 

one of the very significant events in our city's short 

history. 

Before 1977 our government had enough money to 

make ends meet, but as a young city -- we incorporated in 

1985 -- there were lots of things we wanted to accomplish 

to help our residents that we could not do without 

raising taxes, which you-all know that's never a popular 

option. 
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We have had two casinos: Players Island and 

Harrah's. Eventually Harrah's bought out Players, so now 

we're the home dog to one large casino. In the thirteen 

years since their arrival, I have to say that the casinos 

deliver what they promised, and the downside problems 

that critics predicted have not materialized. 

From the start we made the conscious decision to 

be cautious with gaming taxes coming to our city. Until 

the recent economic downturn, only a modest percentage 

went toward day-to-day operations with one exception. We 

use gaming revenue to fully fund trash, recycling, and 

yard waste for our residents. 

The city council's policy has been to invest 

about 2/3 of gaming taxes into capital improvements like 

repaving streets, replacing degenerating curbs and 

gutters, installing sidewalks in residential areas, and 

widening roads in our industrial parks. 

We have also invested in projects that benefit 

the whole region, including more than $40 million to 

construct the new four-lane Maryland Heights expressway 

to alleviate traffic from interstate highway that crosses 

through our city. 

We have put $5 million toward a new interchange 

at Dorsett and I270 that will support a major expansion of 

the Edward Jones campus. And most recently we pledged 
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more than $4 million toward the extension of Expressway 

South to 141 to complete the long-planned and much 

needed outerbelt that will increase accessibility and 

spur economic development throughout north, west, and 

south St. Louis County. 

Since '97 when our casinos first opened their 

doors, Maryland Heights has received more than $195 

million in revenues from our casino. We've been able to 

provide our residents and our businesses with a very high 

level of service in the kinds of things municipalities 

are expected to provide: Police protection, streets, 

sidewalks, bridges and parks. 

The fears of the gambling opponents to a very 

large extent have not come to pass. We have not seen the 

predicted growth in crime. We do have petty crime at our 

casino. Things like car break-ins and an occasional 

fight, but we have more auto break-ins in the apartment 

complexes near the interstates than we do in the 

casinos. 

Our hospitality industry with Harrah's is a 

major draw has continued to prosper. We now host nearly 

ten million visitors each other; about 15,000 more people 

work in Maryland Heights than they did 13 years ago, so 

it's pretty obvious that the overall economy has not been 

harmed by the casinos. 
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Harrah's is a model corporate citizen. They 

provide good jobs with benefits. It's now our largest 

employer. Harrah's continues to invest in and expand its 

property. It's a mainstay of the chamber of commerce and 

the Convention and Tourism Board. They support local 

charities and is active in many ways in our community. 

We're proud to have them in Maryland Heights. 

Most recently we had to increase the use of our 

gaming tax revenue to support city services. While we've 

had to reduce our plans for some capital improvement 

projects, we have not been faced with the difficult 

decisions that other cities in our state are struggling 

with. 

With these benefits to our city and our region 

and mind, I urge you to renew Harrah's license. Thank 

you. Have a good day. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you, Mayor. 

MR. McNARY: Mr. Chairman, I think it should be 

noted just as a point of interest: Isn't it a fact that 

you sell more beer in Maryland Heights than any other 

place in the state? 

MR. MOELLER: I -- I don't know for sure, but I 

would probably think so. We have Gray Eagle Distributor, 

and we do have quite a few entertainment venues within 

the city. 
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MR. McNARY: Westport. 

MR. MOELLER: Westport and the ampitheater 

and --

MR. McNARY: I just thought it was notable. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Mayor, let me just add: 

You know, please forgive Mr. McNary. He -- you know, 

this is -- he's gone here in a matter of minutes, okay, 

so let him have a couple of moments to pick on you, you 

know. 

MR. MOELLER: Absolutely. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: And we're not taking much 

of what he says as, you know, fact anyway. You handled 

that very well. There's a lot of venues in the St. Louis 

area. That's good. 

MR. MOELLER: There is. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: There is. Thank you, sir. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Quite interesting to me 

that he's aware of just how much alcohol is --

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Yeah. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: -- in the west end. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you, Mayor. 

MR. MOELLER: Thank you. 

MR. COOK: If you'd allow me, Commissioners, to 

introduce the mayor of North Kansas City. For those of 

you who might've been here before or even in the room, in 
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all the past appearances we've had Mayor Gene Bruns speak 

on behalf of North Kansas City. This year I'm pleased 

to announce that we now have a new Mayor, so 

Mr. Bill Biggerstaff will be here to tell you a little 

bit about Kansas City. Mayor? 

MR. BIGGERSTAFF: Good morning. 

THE COMMISSION: Good morning. 

MR. BIGGERSTAFF: My name is William 

Biggerstaff, mayor of North Kansas City City. I wish to 

thank you for this opportunity to speak on behalf of 

Harrah's Casino in North Kansas City. 

As mayor, I am very aware and familiar with 

Harrah's in North Kansas City as I was -- happened to be 

involved with -- as a city employee prior to when they 

had located to North Kansas City. At that time I was the 

chief of police. Then I ran for council, was councilman, 

and now I'm the mayor. 

As stated, we have used a lot of our -- a lot of 

the money received -- we had a council at the time that 

put the money in special revenue funds that we received, 

and they in turn -- we used that for reemployment, lining 

of sewers, things like that, to reduce the cost to the 

community and the citizens. 

I've got about several pages here to read. They 

have complied with -- rather than taking up, if you want 
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me to read it, I'll be more than glad to read it. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Why don't you summarize, 

mayor, if that's okay with you. 

MR. BIGGERSTAFF: Okay. Summarizing is: 

Basically they have done exactly what they have said they 

would do for us. We don't have a lot of -- probably do 

have a little crime, car break-ins, those kinds of 

things, and the chief of police is here and he will talk 

about some of those things. 

Basically, they are a good partner, good 

corporate partner in North Kansas City. I think they're 

our largest employer and we're very proud to have them in 

our city. We chose not to -- and we are in the process 

of redeveloping. Our city is bound by Kansas City around 

us, and we are in the process of trying to redevelop a 

lot of land for the future with Harrah's money. 

We also share with other cities the school. We 

redeveloped a nine-block area of -- new homes have gone 

into our city and -- from World War II apartments that 

were there, so we're very proud of Harrah's North Kansas 

City. 

We have a good working relationship. I myself 

or the chief of police does not have a problem of getting 

ahold of Mr. Cook, if we need to, to talk with him about 

anything that's going on, and we're very proud of it, and 
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I hope that you would relicense it today. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Mayor, do you have before 

you, sir, what's the total amount that you -- that was 

paid in to your community or the distribution before it 

was distributed out, as you pointed out? 

And I remember back about -- I don't know how 

long ago, sir -- two years ago, three years ago, 

something like that where the Kansas City Star did, I 

thought, a very positive article on how you-all had spent 

that money. 

I mean, it was very positive to me, and you've 

had -- you know, with a new library, as I remember, and 

streets, et cetera, et cetera, how much is your revenue 

from the casino? Do you have it there? 

MR. BIGGERSTAFF: I don't have it. I've got it 

here somewhere, but I don't have. 

MR. COOK: You've got 4 million in rent alone. 

You've got the admission taxes, which are going to be 

close to -- what do we have there? $4 million? --

probably another 4 million or so. 

MR. BIGGERSTAFF: Harrah's has contributed 

1,536,500 to date. That's to the organizations, in 

fifteen years of the organizations that we give money 

to. 

MR. McNARY: Well, those are charitable 
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contributions. You're asking for the equivalent of 195. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Yeah. Yeah, that Maryland 

Heights had. I'm just trying to kind of get a 

comparison. If you don't have it right in front of you, 

don't worry about it. 

MR. BIGGERSTAFF: I don't have. I've got it 

here somewhere, but I don't have it right here. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: I know it's a positive 

amount, and evidently your community has done a positive 

job on the distribution of that --

MR. BIGGERSTAFF: Right. Exactly. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: -- from everything that I 

can see, you know, by being up there once in a great 

while, and I compliment you on that. 

MR. BIGGERSTAFF: Sorry that I don't have that 

figure in front of me. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: No, that's fine. Don't 

worry about it, sir. 

MR. BIGGERSTAFF: I've got it, but I don't --

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: We're very pleased to have 

you here. 

MR. BIGGERSTAFF: Thank you very much, and I 

appreciate being able to be here to speak, and they are a 

good company and we have a real good relationship with 

Mr. Cook. 
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CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Good. That's what's 

important. Thank you, sir, very much. 

MR. McNARY: Mr. Chairman, let me say a public 

comment is next in this process, but Harrah's -- and I've 

talked to John Payne. Harrah's has an international 

database, and they can bring junkets, and I don't know 

that there's been much movement because of the economy, 

but they're strategically situated so that they can 

actually bring people in from all over the world, 

especially in Kansas City and St. Louis, which have a 

central location and are close to airports. I think 

that's your long-range plan. 

MR. PAYNE: That's the fastest growing segment 

of our business today is the importation of customers who 

are known to Harrah's not known to St. Louis or Kansas 

City. 

MR. McNARY: And they're going to identify the 

high rollers and bring 'em in like you. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Well, you used to have a 

good relationship with me and then I took this damn job 

for a $100 a month and you lost a lot of money. So did 

you (indicated). 

MR. McNARY: All right. 

MR. HINCKLEY: Do you want us to answer 

questions that the commissioners might have or do you 
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want to go on --

MR. McNARY: Chairman, do you want questions or 

are we ready for the investigative summary? 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any commissioners have any 

questions of the managers or the president or anyone else 

that's spoken? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. Let's move forward 

then. 

MR. PAYNE: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you for being here. 

MR. McNARY: Corporal Brian Holcolmb will speak 

to the investigative summary for licensing. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. 

MR. HOLCOLMB: Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, good 

morning. 

THE COMMISSION: Good morning. 

MR. HOLCOLMB: On March 31, 2010, Harrah's 

Entertainment, Incorporated, hereafter referred to as 

Harrah's, submitted a relicensing application to the 

Missouri Gaming Commission for renewal of its Class A 

riverboat gaming license. 

Additionally, Harrah's North Kansas City Casino 

and Harrah's Maryland Heights, doing business as Harrah's 

St. Louis, casino, submitted relicensing applications for 
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renewal of their associated Class B riverboat gaming 

licenses. 

Harrah's was incorporated on November 2, 1989, 

in Delaware, and prior to such date operated under a 

predecessor companies. On January 28, 2008, Harrah's was 

acquired by Hamlet Holdings, LLC, which is owned by 

certain individuals affiliated with Apollo Global 

Management and Texas Pacific Group and is currently 

licensed as a key business entity. 

Harrah's conducts business primarily through a 

wholly-owned subsidiary, Harrah's Operating Company, 

Incorporated; Harrah's North Kansas City; and Harrah's 

St. Louis, are subsidiaries are Harrah's Operating 

Company. 

On August 27, 1996, Harrah's submitted 

application to the Commission for licensure in the state 

of Missouri. Harrah's was subsequently licensed on 

March 11, 1997. Harrah's North Kansas City was initially 

granted a license by the Commission on May 15, 1996, and 

on May 28, 2008, pursuant to a previously completed 

relicensing investigation, the Commission issued a 

Class A license, which is currently considered Class B 

license to Harrah's North Kansas City. 

Harrah's St. Louis was initially granted a 

license by the Commission on March 11, 1997, and on 
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February 25, 2009, pursuant to a previously completed 

relicensing investigation, the Commission issued a 

Class A license, also currently considered a Class B 

license, to Harrah's St. Louis. 

Background investigators from the Missouri 

Highway Patrol's Gaming Division in concert with the 

Missouri Gaming Commission financial investigators 

conducted an investigation concerning the suitability of 

Harrah's; Harrah's North Kansas City; and Harrah's 

St. Louis to continue to operate as Class A and Class B 

licensees respectively. 

The investigation included, but was not limited 

to, criminal, financial, and general character inquiries 

of associated Key and Level I personnel to include where 

they lived, worked, and frequented. City, county, state, 

and federal agencies having regulatory authority over 

Harrah's were also contacted. 

A detailed summary report of the investigation 

was previously provided to the Commission, and 

investigating officers are present and will be happy to 

entertain any questions you may have at this time. Thank 

you. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you, sir. Any 

questions from the Commission? 

(No response.) 
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CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you very much. 

Appreciate it. 

MR. HOLCOLMB: Thank you, sir. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Can we -- Gene, let me go 

back for public comment from the chair's standpoint so we 

do get it in the record that we did ask for it, okay? 

Was there anyone here that wanted to speak on 

either one of the license? Anyone? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. Seeing none then 

we'll move forward, sir. Thank you. 

MR. McNARY: Next will be the minority/women 

business compliance review. John Nathan, who's already 

been spoken of, is here to make that presentation. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Nice to see him without his 

cane. 

MR. NATHAN: Commissioner, I was shamed into 

throwing that cane away, so I don't have that. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Proceed, John. 

MR. NATHAN: Good morning, Mr. Chairman, 

Commissioners. 

You will find the MBE/WBE audit inside your 

binder. This is the first MBE/WBE audit of Harrah's. 

Included in the report is Harrah's response. You'll find 

this response behind the auditor's recommendations. 
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As we mentioned in the last couple of meetings, 

which presented the MBE/WBE reports during relicensing, 

this report will set the baseline for future MBE/WBE 

audits for Harrah's during relicensing. 

We will be able to determine during the next 

relicensing audit if they have deviated up or down from 

this baseline. At this time I'll be happy to answer any 

questions in regards to this report. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Commissioner Jones? 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Mr. Nathan, thank you for 

the report. I'm just having a little confusion on why 

the numbers, you know, are so far off from what the audit 

says and what's being reported to the Commission itself 

and also the numbers that are on the slide. 

It looks like they're all over the place, and I 

don't know if you can get the -- I guess anyone from 

either one of St. Louis or Kansas City to discuss why the 

numbers are just all over the board. 

The audit is saying one thing in some of the 

numbers that you're reporting, and then the slide says 

one thing and then we get different numbers in here. 

Now, I'm pretty sure we have competent staff 

over there that's, you know -- and responsible for this, 

or maybe they're being directed to give us bogus 

numbers -- I don't know -- and I'm just saying it, but if 
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someone could explain that to us, you know, I certainly 

would appreciate it. 

MR. NATHAN: I'll be glad to invite them up so 

they can respond to it. 

MR. ST. PIERRE: Commissioner, that's a great 

question. I'd ask the same thing if I were in your 

chair. The key differences about third-party 

certification of minority business enterprise or 

women-owned business enterprise status, our properties, 

since the beginning of our reporting on these purchases 

have used a good faith measure of reporting what we 

believe to be purchases from minority- or women-owned 

businesses. 

Now, whether or not they were certified was not 

known to us. We now have a new proposal with the 

regulations that these businesses will send in 

certification verification or an affidavit that's 

certified, that says they are certified, and those are 

the only numbers we'll use going forward. 

But there are many businesses we know, 

Commissioner, who were previously certified, their 

certification has lapsed. We believe them to be 

minority-owned businesses. We've continued to report 

them. 

So this is a new development where the only ones 
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that we're going to give credit for going forward are 

either those who are third-party certified or have 

attested with an affidavit to their minority status. 

So this is the last year that you'll see numbers 

that don't seem to have any opportunity for validation, 

but all I can assure you, that these are good faith 

measures. We believe that the numbers that we reported 

are true and accurate, and we've done it the same way for 

previous relicensure hearings. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Okay. Now, are you going 

to develop any type of plan, I guess, similar to what you 

have done with your underage drinking so we're able to 

monitor, I guess, a best faith effort on secure minority-

and women-owned businesses. 

MR. ST. PIERRE: And I think we've already done 

that, but now by virtue of this new affidavit we'll have 

a better measure of validating whether or not the status 

is, in fact, minority-owned or women-owned businesses. 

So my suggestion to you is this: We've always 

done what we believe to be the right thing that's in 

accord with the regulations for maximizing purchases in 

the minority community. 

We've always done the right thing. We've always 

reported on a good faith measure. We now have a new 

process and a new tool which will now allow us to report 
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numbers that are easily validated. Today they are not 

easily validated which is why we have the audit that went 

in and looked only at third-party certification. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: All right. I'd like to 

commend you also, John, on this and also North Kansas 

City, Tom, and, you, Michael, on doing what you're 

supposed to do for the cities. I mean, it's been great 

properties. 

I've visited both of them and they've been 

great, but I just want to make sure that we move forward 

in a positive direction because I hate to see these 

numbers all over the board, and you have capital 

investment in both properties well into the hundreds of 

millions of dollars, and you start looking at the numbers 

in they're like, you know, 30 basis points or 2 percent 

spent for minority and women and, you know, I believe as 

a citizen of Missouri and also as a commissioner that we 

should include everyone in this state, you know, for 

opportunities that are on those two properties, if there 

is some type of opportunities, that should include all of 

the citizens of the state of Missouri. 

So I'm just hoping that as we move forward --

and I do understand what you're saying since it was --

since you didn't have a baseline, you were just all over 

the board. You just took the word of whoever came up to 

58 



  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

           1  

           2  

           3  

           4  

           5  

           6  

           7  

           8  

           9  

          10  

          11  

          12  

          13  

          14  

          15  

          16  

          17  

          18  

          19  

          20  

          21  

          22  

          23  

          24  

          25  

 

          

          

 

 

          

 

 

          

          

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

you and said --

MR. ST. PIERRE: That's right. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: -- hey, you know, we are a 

minority- or woman-owned business and we would like to do 

business with you. 

So now that we have something in writing and 

you're going to have a plan put together, I do commend 

you on that. 

MR. ST. PIERRE: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Commissioner Jones, could I 

make a statement? We have discussed this at several of 

the renewals where the various enterprises are located. 

I was just reading the Statute 313.805 which 

indicates in paragraph 18 that you will have a written 

plan, and I'd like to see a written plan developed, 

Commissioner Jones, so whenever at the license renewal 

they report on the effectiveness of the plan, that is 

their plans, so that we might be able to go back and 

compare their plan and the result, so I would make that 

proposal. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Do you have a written plan 

right now, gentlemen? I mean, I know -- you know, you 

emphasize -- we understand that it's been fairly 

difficult for you to actually take -- all you did was 

take someone's word, as the commissioner asked you. 

59 



  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

           1  

           2  

           3  

           4  

           5  

           6  

           7  

           8  

           9  

          10  

          11  

          12  

          13  

          14  

          15  

          16  

          17  

          18  

          19  

          20  

          21  

          22  

          23  

          24  

          25  

          

          

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

 

          

MR. ST. PIERRE: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: And I'm not criticizing you 

for that because that's what was there, okay? You met 

what was there. Do each of you in your facility have a 

written plan in place that will track with what we're 

asking you to do to verify in the future? 

MR. ST. PIERRE: The short answer is no. We 

have a corporate plan that states our commitment to 

inclusion, diversity and inclusion in all aspects of our 

business, but we do not have specific property level 

tactical plans of how we can maximize our spend in those 

areas. It's part of our way of life. We don't have a 

specific plan on that though. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Well, it does require the 

licensee, and there are three licenses, so you said you 

have one at the corporate level but not at the 

individual. 

MR. ST. PIERRE: Right, and that's the one 

that's included in the additional information in our 

packet. It's included in your packet, but that plan has 

stood as the property level plans, so it covers all three 

licensees, if you will. Now, if your request is for us 

to develop a very specific tactical plan, we can 

certainly do that. 

MR. McNARY: How difficult is that? You 
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mentioned, Michael, a water vendor that was an outreach 

type of thing. You know, it sounds to me as though 

corporate is really establishing a policy as to what your 

intentions are, but as to a specific plan, can you 

develop an outreach plan that is going to show best 

efforts? 

MR. COOK: Yeah, I think that we can do that, 

and I think to be fair, one, I just wanted to echo what 

was related by Michael on behalf of St. Louis to note 

very clearly that North Kansas City is very much in the 

same boat and that with the good faith efforts with the 

new plan in place with regard to what Mr. Nathan and 

others have done in the audit committee to come up with a 

verification form to give to our vendors. 

I think, Mr. McNary, I guess we'll get into a 

level of specificity that would have us get a clear 

understanding of whether or not we could adhere to a 

plan, but I do want to note that we do have procedures in 

place that include a competitive bid process by which we 

make a lot of good efforts to make sure in our 

competitive bid process that we include minority-owned 

businesses and women-owned businesses. 

Part of our process also includes on a quarterly 

basis when we meet with Mr. Nathan and we are furnished 

with more vendors that we are aware of, we provide that 
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to a regional purchasing person. 

So now we have one person for Missouri 

properties that does a large part of our purchases, and I 

think centralizing those purchasing decisions will be a 

benefit to insuring that we can continue in our efforts 

to make sure that we do as much as we can to increase 

spend in minority businesses and women-owned businesses. 

So, yes, we have -- we don't have a detailed 

tactical plan as Michael noted, but we certainly have 

procedures in place that help give us confidence that 

what we have is good faith effort. There's probably a 

happy medium in there that would probably have us feel a 

little bit better. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Can you put together a 

specific plan to meet the requirements and meet what we 

would like to see, okay, which I think you understand? 

MR. COOK: Uh-huh. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: We just want to make sure 

that if they're out there, they ought to have a right to 

be a part of the game, okay --

MR. ST. PIERRE: Yeah. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: -- play in the game? 

Can you put us together something --

MR. ST. PIERRE: Yeah. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: -- within the next sixty 
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days? 

MR. ST. PIERRE: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Can you do that within 

sixty days? 

MR. ST. PIERRE: Yeah. 

CHAIRMAN METHEWSON: Huh? 

MR. ST. PIERRE: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. And that would go 

along with -- I'm looking back to the big guy there 

behind you. He's nodding. He's nodding. Yeah, we can 

do that. Yeah, we can do that. Okay. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: And that way they'll be in 

compliance with that rating. 

MR. ST. PIERRE: We believed that we were 

already under compliance. We think this is another level 

of specificity, and we're happy to provide that, but we 

believe that by complying with our corporate statement, 

we were, in fact, in compliance with the regulation. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Well, when I read the audit 

and it said they had to revise the figures, that 

indicated to me that there was some noncompliance, some 

level of noncompliance or inattention to detail, and what 

we're interested in is the absolute detail. 

MR. ST. PIERRE: I understand, Commissioner. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Commissioner Merritt, 
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please. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Do you think a plan that 

you would create for your property would vary a great 

deal from the corporate plan? 

MR. ST. PIERRE: No, I think it's consistent 

with the spirit and the intent of the corporate plan, but 

it would have a much more granular level of detailed 

activity. 

Tom talked about how we have a competitive bid 

process. We'll put in detail how we do that, who we 

solicit bids from, et cetera. That level of detail is 

not in the corporate plan, sir. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. 

MR. McNARY: And Mr. Chairman and Commissioner 

Jones, let me say that Harrah's isn't alone. I want to 

recommend to the incoming executive director that a 

letter go out to all of the casinos that we want that 

kind of a plan. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Thank you. 

Michael, great job with Unlimited. I do know 

they have a good product. I'm familiar with that 

company, so thanks a lot for that. 

MR. ST. PIERRE: Yes, sir. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thanks, guys. John, did 

64 



  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

           1  

           2  

           3  

           4  

           5  

           6  

           7  

           8  

           9  

          10  

          11  

          12  

          13  

          14  

          15  

          16  

          17  

          18  

          19  

          20  

          21  

          22  

          23  

          24  

          25  

 

          

          

          

          

          

 

 

 

          

 

 

          

 

          

          

 

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

you have something else you'd like to say, sir? 

MR. NATHAN: No, that's all. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you, John Nathan. 

MR. NATHAN: No other questions. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. Thank you. 

MR. McNARY: Chairman, staff recommends 

relicensure of both A and B licenses for Harrah's Company 

as well as Harrah's Kansas City and Harrah's Maryland 

Heights. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. Chair will accept 

the motions -- one motion on all three of the 

resolutions. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Move for acceptance of 

Resolution No. 10-071, 10-072, and 10-073. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Second. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any further discussion? 

Call roll, Angie, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 
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MS. FRANKS: By your vote you've adopted 

Resolution Nos. 10-071, 10-072, and 10-073. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Again, thank you all very 

much. Thank you for -- you're welcome to stay. I'm not 

asking you to leave, but you've probably got other things 

to do. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: They may be trying to beat 

the outgoing executive director to the baseball game. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Have a safe trip. Thank 

you. Thanks, guys. Mayors, thank you all for being 

here. Good to see you again. 

MR. McNARY: Chairman, Item V on the agenda 

concerns relicensure of certain suppliers. Lieutenant 

Rex Scism will deal with those. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: I see Rex. 

LIEUTENANT SCISM: Good morning, Mr. Chairman, 

Commissioners. 

THE COMMISSION: Good morning. 

LIEUTENANT SCISM: The Missouri State Highway 

Patrol investigators conducted the relicensing 

investigation of two supplier companies currently 

licensed in Missouri. 

These investigations consisted of jurisdictional 

inquiries, feedback from affected gaming company clients, 

a review of disciplinary actions, litigation, and 
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business credit profiles as well as a review of the key 

persons associated with each company. 

The result of these investigations were provided 

to the MGC staff for their review, and the following 

supplier companies are being presented for your 

consideration this morning. The first is Gaming Partners 

International, U.S.A., of Las Vegas, Nevada. 

MR. McNARY: Staff recommends relicensure. 


CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any questions of Rex? 


(No response.) 


CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Chair would accept the 


motion for approval of 074. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Move for the acceptance of 

Resolution No. 10-074. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Second. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any further questions? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Call the roll, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 
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COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: By your vote you've adopted 

Resolution No. 10-074. 

LIEUTENANT SCISM: And then finally, the last 

supplier company, Tech Art Manufacturing, Incorporated, 

of Las Vegas, Nevada. 

MR. McNARY: Staff recommends relicensure. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any questions? 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Recommend approval of 

10-075. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Second. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any further discussion? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Call roll, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones? 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt? 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: By your vote you've adopted 

Resolution No. 10-075. 

MR. McNARY: Item VI on the agenda is 
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consideration of licensure of certain Level I/Key 

applicants. Rex? 

LIEUTENANT SCISM: Thank you. 

Missouri State Highway Patrol investigators 

along with Gaming Commission financial investigators 

conducted comprehensive background investigations on 

multiple Key and Level I applicants. 

The investigations include but were not limited 

to criminal, financial, and general character inquiries, 

which remain in the jurisdictions where the applicants 

lived, worked, and frequented. The following individuals 

are being presented for your consideration this morning: 

Gregory S. Gronau, president and CEO of Gaming Partners 

International; David D. Ross, COO of Herbst Gaming, 

Incorporated; and finally Robert A. Mathewson, outside 

director for International Game Technology. 

The results of all investigations were provided 

to the Gaming Commission staff for their review, and you 

have summary reports before you for all of the applicants 

being considered. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: How do you spell that last 

one there? 

LIEUTENANT SCISM: Same way as yours, Senator. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: I have a cousin that I 

didn't know about. I probably ought to decline voting 
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for my cousin, although I've never heard of him. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Where does he live? 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Las Vegas. 

LIEUTENANT SCISM: Well, he's with International 

Game Technology. I'd have to look at the report, but 

they're based out of Reno, Nevada, so I think you're 

safe. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: All right. 

MR. McNARY: Staff recommends licensure of your 

cousin as well as the other ones. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. Chair would accept 

the motion of relicensure. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: I would move we approve 

Resolution 10-076. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Second. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any further discussion? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Call roll, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 
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COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: By your vote you have adopted 

Resolution No. 10-076. 

MR. McNARY: Chairman, Item VII on the agenda 

concerns disciplinary actions. Tab L refers to Ameristar 

Casinos St. Charles. An underaged patron is involved. 

The security officer checked the underaged patron's 

identification and allowed him to enter the casino's 

gaming floor. While on the gaming floor for 

approximately 15 hours, the underaged patron was served 

ten beers and gambled by playing craps and blackjack. 

During this time on the gaming floor the 

underaged patron interacted with 33 different casino 

employees, none of which asked to see the underaged 

patron's identification. 

This is the reverse of what we've encouraged the 

casinos to do, and Harrah's talked about a bounty of 

bonus given to employees that do detect underaged 

patrons. This was flagrant, and the staff's been in --

recommended a fine of $75,000. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any discussions? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Chair would accept the 

motion. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Move to accept the motion 
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of DC-10-210. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Second. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any further discussion? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Call roll, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: By your vote you've adopted 

DC-10-210. 

MR. McNARY: Tab M, Mr. Chairman, is Casino One 

Corporation. That's Lumiere Place. Casino security 

officers failed to account for the admission of several 

handicapped patrons after the handicapped patrons were 

escorted around the turnstiles. 

Later it was discovered that the involved 

security officers were unaware of the internal controls 

and the minimum internal control standards and 

regulations that pertained to their job. Staff 

recommends a $25,000 fine. 
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CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any questions? 


(No response.) 


CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Chair would accept the 


motion to approve 10-211. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Move for DC-10-211. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Second. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Call roll, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: By your vote you've adopted 

DC-10-211. 

MR. McNARY: Tab N, Mr. Chairman, concerns 

Harrah's Maryland Heights after an incident involving a 

patron playing in a poker tournament. 

A Highway Patrol gaming agent asked to see the 

current tournament rules, casino provided rules, but 

they were not the current or applicable rules for the 

tournament, hence the current rules were not available to 

MGC and the public upon request. That's a violation. 
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Staff recommends a fine of $10,000. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any questions? Chair would 

accept the motion on 10-212. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: So move. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Second. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Call roll, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: By your vote you've adopted 

DC-10-212. 

MR. McNARY: Tab O, Mr. Chairman, concerns Isle 

of Capri-Caruthersville. It's in two counts. Count I 

was repeat finding from a prior audit showed the casino's 

cage team was either not investigating kiosk variances or 

simply failing to record the results of any such 

investigations. 

Count II, a repeat finding from a prior audit 

showed that the casino's cage team was not manually 

cancelling the bar codes on tickets that were not 
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electronically redeemed. 

Both of these would be folded into a fine of 

$10,000. That's a staff recommendation. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. Any questions of 

Mr. McNary? If you have anything to say to Mr. McNary, 

you ought to get ready to say it because he's got to go 

to a ballgame. 

(No response.) 


CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Chair would accept the 


motion to approve the recommendation on 10-213. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: So move. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Second. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Call roll, place. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: By your vote you've adopted 

DC-10-213. 

MR. McNARY: Let me say, Mr. Chairman, that 

these are in the form of allegations. Every one of these 
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will have -- they'll have a right to be heard before a 

hearing officer, and so this is simply a charging 

document with a recommendation, and they would -- you 

know, that's called due process. 

The last tab, P, staff would recommend that that 

be held. We'd like to do a little further inquiry and 

discussion with Isle of Capri-Kansas City on that 

matter. 

And at this point, you know, it is time for me 

to get out of here and go to a ballgame, which seems to 

be of major importance. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: I thought they always were 

in your life. 

MR. McNARY: They are. I don't think a lot of 

people know that about me, but I would like to hand the 

gavel, if we had one, over to new executive director, 

CEO, of the Missouri Gaming Commission, Roger 

Stottlemyre, who has a distinguished record. 

He's no stranger to administration and 

enforcement and is really a part of the existing team, so 

there's not much of a transitional upheaval here. 

I would like to say -- and Roger, you can either 

come around or you can come up here this way (indicated), 

but I'm going out this way and shake hands with all of 

you. I told you what I thought of you yesterday. 

76 



  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

           1  

           2  

           3  

           4  

           5  

           6  

           7  

           8  

           9  

          10  

          11  

          12  

          13  

          14  

          15  

          16  

          17  

          18  

          19  

          20  

          21  

          22  

          23  

          24  

          25  

          

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

          

          

          

 

          

          

 

          

 

 

 

I've enjoyed working with you immensely. This 

has been a great ride for me, and all of the people in 

the industry, Mike, Deanna, and the lawyers, Tom and Jim 

and Jerry, the GMs. 

You know, it is a great industry. It's made a 

big difference to the people of the state of Missouri. 

These amounts of money that have been generated to go 

into regional projects and whatnot, your contribution, 

you're great corporate citizens. I think the people of 

the state need to know that, that this is a good industry 

and has served our people well. 

But it's been fun for me, and I'll be back to 

annoy some people when I can. Especially you, 

Mr. Chairman. I don't know --

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: I knew that. 

MR. McNARY: Thank you and good luck. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you, Gene. Be safe. 

God love you. 

MR. McNARY: God love you. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: That's it, Gene, work the 

crowd. Adios. 

The end of an era and the start of a new one. 

You know, those things have to happen. When I left the 

Senate back four or five years ago, I had tears in my 

face all the way home. You know, it's always tough. 
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You know, you go through it. You guys have all 

either done it or you will, you know. It's always -- you 

build a relationship with people, and then that comes to 

an end. 

I'm still waiting to run into one of the guys 

that I served in the military with. Never have. Isn't 

that amazing? You know, never have. I guess they didn't 

like my ass, probably. I defended them. At any rate, 

we're going to start. 

Roger, welcome aboard, sir. We love you. Try 

to act right in the future, okay? 

MR. STOTTLEMYRE: I'll do my best. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: I know you will. 

MR. STOTTLEMYRE: At this time we're ready to go 

to Item VIII and consideration of settlement agreements. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Mr. Hinckley, sir. 

MR. HINCKLEY: Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, I 

direct your attention to settlement agreements behind 

Tabs Q, R, and S. As we've done in the past couple 

meetings, I'll just present the three settlement 

agreements, and you can vote on all three at the end, 

okay? 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you, sir. 

MR. HINCKLEY: With regard to each of the 

settlement agreements, the licensees involved contacted 
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the Commission shortly after the Commission issued each 

disciplinary order. 

They took responsibility for their action or 

inactions alleged and negotiated the following settlement 

agreements with the Commission: Behind Tab Q you have 

Commission Resolution 10-077, which concerns licensee 

Isle of Capri-Caruthersville, L.L.C., and underlying 

Disciplinary Matter 10-158 in which the licensee was 

fined $15,000 for allegations relating to having EGDs on 

the casino's gaming floor with revoked software. 

The licensee has agreed to settle this matter 

for a payment of $13,500. The staff recommends that the 

Commission approve this resolution. 

Behind Tab R you have Commission resolution 

10-079, which concerns licensee Konami Gaming, 

Incorporated, and underlying Disciplinary Matter 10-169 

in which the licensee was fined $5,000 for allegations 

relating to the shipping of electronic gaming devices 

with revoked software to a Missouri casino. 

The licensee has agreed to settle this matter 

for a payment of $4,500. Staff recommends that the 

Commission approve this resolution. 

And behind Tab S you have Commission Resolution 

10-080, which concerns licensee Isle of Capri-Kansas City 

and underlying Disciplinary Matter 10-170 in which the 
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licensee was find $10,000 for allegations relating to two 

repeat audit findings. 

The licensee has agreed to settle this matter 

for a payment of $9,000. The staff recommends that the 

Commission approve this resolution. 

And that concludes the settlement agreements. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any questions, of 

Mr. Hinckley? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: We'll take those votes one 

at a time, okay? So Chair would accept the motion on 

10-077. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: So moved. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Second. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any discussion? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Call roll, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 
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MS. FRANKS: By your vote you've adopted 

Resolution No. 10-077. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Chair would accept the 

motion on 10-079. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Move approval of the motion 

10-079. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Second. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Call roll, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: By your vote you've adopted 

Resolution No. 10-079. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: 

motion on 080. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: 

Chair would accept the 


So moved. 


Second. 


Call roll, please. 


MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Approve. 
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MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 


COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 


MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 


COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 


MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 


COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 


MS. FRANKS: By your vote you've adopted 


Resolution No. 10-080. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you. 

MR. HINCKLEY: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you, sir. 

MR. STOTTLEMYRE: It's time to go to Item IX, 

the Consideration of Rulemaking, and Cheryl Alonzo will 

make the presentation on behalf of the staff. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Morning, Cheryl, again. 

MS. ALONZO: Hi. Good morning. 

Behind Tab T you'll find four proposed rules: 

11 CSR 45-4.010; 11 CSR 45-9.113, Chapter M-Surveillance; 

11 CSR 45-9.114, Chapter N-Security; and 11 CSR 45-9.118, 

Chapter R, which is the forms chapter. 

We've updated and clarified provisions 

throughout these chapters based on past problems, changes 

in industry and concerns from MGC auditors and MGC 

enforcement personnel. 

We've also incorporated some variances in these 
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chapters. The first proposed rule, 11 CSR 45-1.010 is an 

address change; in this rule the gaming and admission 

fee tax records were required to be submitted to the 

St. Louis office. This rule change will require the 

forms to be submitted to the Jefferson City office. 

The next, Chapter M, surveillance rules; this 

chapter was completely reviewed and revised in detail to 

be more specific and clarify requirements. 

One of the changes relates to increase from the 

minimum requirement for surveillance personnel in the 

surveillance room. It also updates the language to 

address the implementation of digital surveillance by 

including language to allow for the use of videotapes and 

digital recordings because we have both right now. 

Chapter N, this chapter was completely reviewed 

and revised and detailed to be more specific of clarified 

requirements again. We added a rule to enforce the 

admissions and gambling restrictions for persons under 21 

years of age by requiring they check photo ID. We've 

also revised the chapter to adopt MGC policies and 

variances. 

Chapter R has been revised. We had to modify 

seven forms. As the MICS had been revised, we were also 

having to revise some of the reporting forms. 

The Missouri Gaming Association has had the 
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opportunity to review these drafts. They've met with us, 

asked questions, expressed concerns, and suggested 

changes. Some of the forms are incorporated into the 

proposed rule we have before you. 

A comment period for these rules will run from 

August 1 through August 30 with a public hearing date on 

September 8. These proposals seek to allow the 

Commission to keep up with new technology while insuring 

the protection of assets, accountability, and integrity 

of gaming. 

I'll try to answer any questions you might 

have. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Questions by the 

Commission? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. Doesn't appear to be 

any questions there, Cheryl. 

MS. ALONZO: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: You did a good job, lady. 

God love you for it. 

Ms. Angie says we could probably do all four of 

those in one motion, so that being the case and she 

being, you know, an expert on all things, Chair would 

accept a motion to accept all four. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Move for the acceptance of 

84 



  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

           1  

           2  

           3  

           4  

           5  

           6  

           7  

           8  

           9  

          10  

          11  

          12  

          13  

          14  

          15  

          16  

          17  

          18  

          19  

          20  

          21  

          22  

          23  

          24  

          25  

 

 

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

 

          

          

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

proposed rules in Amendments 11 CSR 45-1.010, 

11 CSR 45-9.113; 11 CSR 45-9.114;, 11 CSR 45-9.118. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Second. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Any discussion? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Call roll, Angie, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 

MS. FRANKS: By your vote you've adopted 

11 CSR 45-1.010; 9.113; 9.114, and 9.118. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. New business? 

MR. STOTTLEMYRE: Chairman, I'd like to make a 

report on the 24-hour gaming to you just to let you know 

that we do have three of the properties on the east side 

of the state, St. Louis area, Lumiere, Ameristar, and 

Harrah's are all going to take advantage of the 24-hour 

gaming. 

And on the west side of the state we have four, 

which is Ameristar, Harrah's, Isle of Capri and the 
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Argosy. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Roger, thank you. 

But for my benefit, and maybe not the others on 

the Commission, but what's 24 hours mean? I mean, is 

there going to be a break in there for cleanup times or 

how is that all going to work? 

MR. STOTTLEMYRE: This is, and we have made --

had agreements with them on exactly how we're going to do 

this. They are going to have to do a count on the floor 

every day. 

And every -- once a week on Wednesday we will --

they do have to shut down for an hour's time to make sure 

we've got the admissions where they need to be and give 

us the opportunity for any paperwork that needs to be 

accomplished during that period of time. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. 

MR. STOTTLEMYRE: They are open now 24 hours, a 

lot of the casinos are over the weekends and over holiday 

periods, but this does lengthen that time. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. Was there like a 

letter of agreement with each one of them on how that's 

going to function, or how did that work? 

MR. STOTTLEMYRE: They have directions from us 

on what the -- how that will work and the requirements as 

far as the accounting of the individuals left on the 
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floor at the end of each gaming day and the closing of 

the casinos the one day a week to work the books. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. Any commissioners 

have any questions on this? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: And that will go into 

effect when, sir? 

MR. STOTTLEMYRE: Effective July 1 they're 

allowed to do that. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: That's pretty soon, isn't 

it. 

MR. STOTTLEMYRE: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Mr. Stottlemyre, does that 

include all operations like the food facilities and 

everything except for, I guess, the night life or the 

voodoo rooms and all that other -- or just the floor? 

MR. STOTTLEMYRE: Yeah, those hours not 

necessarily are changed, and as far as the restaurants 

and all the other facilities that they have, we leave 

that up to them as far as the hours of operation; 

however, their ability to have gaming on the floor is 

open during the 24-hour period. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: And I assume you're going 

to be limited to alcohol. 
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MR. STOTTLEMYRE: The hours have not changed on 

that. We've been asked about that; however the hours are 

still the same right now. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: They still have a three a.m. 

license so --

MR. STOTTLEMYRE: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Mr. Chairman, will 

that -- has the staffing addressed any that they can 

still be very cognizant of underaged participants in that 

that they can watch that as close? 

MR. STOTTLEMYRE: And the same expectations for 

those extended hours will -- you know, there'll be the 

same expectations that we would have for any other time 

that they're open. 

We did assign an extra agent to each 

facility that is going to 24-hour gaming, too, just so 

that we have the coverage that it would require that --

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: As I remember, Roger, 

because of the license going -- closing of the President, 

we picked up some officers there --

MR. STOTTLEMYRE: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: -- and we're utilizing that 

number that we have, maybe not the individuals, but that 

number; is that correct? 

MR. STOTTLEMYRE: That is correct, sir. Some of 
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the individuals are utilized, but also some of those FTE 

positions, full-time employee positions, are moved to the 

west side of the state so that we can utilize them 

there. That's where we came up with the additional 

officers. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. Any other questions 

on that? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. Good. Thank you. 

Anything else new business-wise, Roger? 

MR. STOTTLEMYRE: I have nothing, sir. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Okay. All right. 

Do any one of the commissioners have anything on 

new business? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Old business? Anybody have 

anything on old business? 

(No response.) 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: I know that everyone here 

will be excited to know that I just got a message from 

Deb out at the front desk that all of my pressure washers 

are now repaired and available for me to pick up in 

Sedalia. I knew that that would be exciting to all of 

you. I had three of the damn things and none of them 

would work. 
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COMMISSIONER MERRITT: I thought you were going 

to announce that as Mr. McNary left he flattened all the 

tires of your car. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: He hadn't thought of it, or 

maybe he has. I don't know. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Who's in charge of the 

patrol here? Could you go check my car? 

MR. STOTTLEMYRE: Mr. Chairman, we do have 

surveillance cameras, so if he did do that --

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Good. Okay. 

At this time the Chairman would accept the 

motion for a closed meeting, which we will have 

immediately hereafter. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: So moved. 

CHAIRMAN JONES: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to make 

a motion to go into closed meeting under Section 

313.847 and 610.021, Section 1, 11, 12, and 14. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Second. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Call roll, please. 

MS. FRANKS: Chairman Mathewson. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Yes. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Shull. 

COMMISSIONER SHULL: Yes. 

MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Jones. 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Approve. 
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MS. FRANKS: Commissioner Merritt. 

COMMISSIONER MERRITT: Approve. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: To all of you, Happy 4th of 

July. Pretty darned important day to America, isn't it? 

COMMISSIONER JONES: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN MATHEWSON: Thank you for being here. 

Please have a safe trip going home. 

(Closed Meeting 11:35 a.m.) 
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CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER 

I, Nancy L. Silva, CCR, within and for the State 

of Missouri, do hereby certify that the foregoing hearing 

was taken by me to the best of my ability and thereafter 

reduced to typewriting under my direction; that I am 

neither counsel for, related to, nor employed by any of 

the parties to the action in which this hearing was 

taken, and further, that I am not a relative or employee 

of any attorney or counsel employed by the parties 

thereto, nor financially or otherwise interested in the 

outcome of the action. 

Nancy L. Silva, CCR 
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MISSOURI GAMING COMMISSION 

Second Open Session Minutes 


June 30, 2010 


The Missouri Gaming Commission (the “Commission”) went into open session at approximately 
12:05 p.m. on June 30, 2010, at its Jefferson City office.   

Commissioner Jones moved to adjourn the open session meeting.  Commissioner Shull 
seconded the motion, and after a roll call vote was taken, the motion passed unanimously. 




